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Report from the Chair

While overall, our economy continues to show signs of improvement, too many of  

our members continue to face difficult times. While unemployment statistics have  

improved, that was not comforting news if you were furloughed due to the  

sequestration or government shutdown this year.

During these times and difficult circumstances, Redstone Federal Credit Union has 

strived to offer the products and services our members need. In keeping with our  

philosophy of “People helping people,” we were happy to offer furlough loans that  

provided security to members who experienced a brief interruption of their cash flow. 

We also reached out to our members to offer free financial counseling and other help-

ful resources to ease their financial burden during the temporary financial setbacks 

they faced.

We are deeply gratified that we could be there for our members when they needed  

us most, and we in turn are more grateful than ever for the trust our members have 

continued to put in Redstone.

We look forward to continual improvement in the economy in the coming year. But 

rest assured that whatever economic twists, turns and setbacks may lie ahead, Redstone 

will remain strong, sound and eager to serve our members and communities.

Respectfully submitted, 
Dorothy W. Huston, PhD  

Chair, Board of Directors
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Report from the President

I am pleased to report that Redstone enjoyed great growth and success this year, thanks 

to our members’ unwavering confidence and trust.

Building on the longstanding tradition of trust you have put in Redstone we are 

pleased to say we have successfully begun a transition into being your trusted advisor 

on the most important events in your life. 

We encourage our members to visit our website or any branch to find helpful informa-

tion and advice intended for their specific circumstance and goals. We look forward to 

forming many new advisor relationships with our members in the coming year.

This year we were pleased to offer many new services and features to further improve 

our members’ experience. A few of these include the addition of more than 30,000 

surcharge-free ATMs, two new conveniently located branches, and new time-saving 

features inside online banking.

Of course it was also a financially tumultuous year for many of our members and we 

made it a top priority to assist those affected by furloughs and layoffs. 

You can count on Redstone to continue to provide the high quality products and  

services that meet our members’ needs and expectations in the year to come.

We will also continue to welcome your feedback and input about how we can make 

your financial cooperative the best it can be.

As always, thank you for your membership.

Respectfully submitted, 
Joseph H. Newberry 

President/CEO
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Report from the Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee, in compliance with the Federal Credit Union Act and  

Redstone Federal’s bylaws, independently evaluates the soundness of Redstone  

Federal’s operations and activities. The Committee provides assurance that the board 

and management are meeting required financial reporting objectives, and establish-

ing practices and procedures sufficient to safeguard members’ assets by implementing 

sound internal controls.

In accordance with these responsibilities, the committee hired an independent CPA 

(certified public accountant) firm, Moss Adams, to perform the financial statements 

audit for the year ending June 30, 2013. The report of Independent Auditors appears  

in this Annual Report.   

Industry recognition received by Redstone Federal Credit Union during 2013 includes 

Bauer Financial, Inc. 5-star rating for the 17th consecutive year. This award indicates 

Redstone Federal Credit Union is one of the safest financial institutions in the  

United States.

Based on the results of internal audits, the financial statements audit, and the regula-

tory examination report of NCUA, conducted during the past year, it is the opinion of 

the Supervisory Committee that Redstone Federal Credit Union continues to be finan-

cially secure and operates in a safe and sound manner. Staff continues to work hard to 

maintain your financial security and prosperity. 

Thank you for your membership. It is because of members, like you, that we continue to 

be a proven leader in the financial industry.

Respectfully submitted, 
Nancy H. Walker

Chair
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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Board of Directors and Supervisory Committee
Redstone Federal Credit Union and Subsidiaries
Huntsville, Alabama

Report on Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Redstone Federal Credit 
Union and Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as 
of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive 
income, members’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on 
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and  
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the  
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the con-
solidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropri-
ate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all mate-
rial respects, the financial position of Redstone Federal Credit Union and Subsidiaries as of June 
30, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then end-
ed in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Spokane, Washington
September 4, 2013
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

June 30, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS	 2013	 2012
Cash and cash equivalents			    $122,552,172 	  $138,577,477  
Investments: 
	 Available for sale			    921,122,284	  919,586,419   
	 Held to maturity			    1,041,093,344	  916,802,262   
	 Other			    6,269,348 	  11,987,048  
Loans held for sale			    22,211,887 	  15,790,485 
Loans, net			    1,273,495,324  	  1,221,342,516 
Accrued interest receivable			    12,312,516 	  12,911,257   
Property and equipment, net			    89,667,903 	  91,130,858  
National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund  
	 (NCUSIF) deposit			    29,004,985 	  27,056,119  
Other real estate owned			    2,875,382 	  2,666,826   
Other assets			    19,976,667 	  19,237,283  

	 Total assets	              		  $3,540,581,812 	 $3,377,088,550 

 
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY	                                                      
Liabilities: 
	 Members’ shares			    $3,077,231,996  	 $2,947,490,582 	
 	 Borrowed funds			    47,974,419 	  25,568,135   
	 Accrued expenses and other liabilities		   52,081,801 	  62,106,623 

	 Total liabilities			    3,177,288,216 	  3,035,165,340 

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 10)

Members’ equity: 
	 Retained earnings			    378,101,246 	  347,448,371  
	 Accumulated other comprehensive income		   (14,807,650)	  (5,525,161)

	 Total members’ equity			    363,293,596 	  341,923,210 

	 Total liabilities and members’ equity		   $3,540,581,812 	 $3,377,088,550 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

	 2013	 2012
Interest income: 
	 Interest on loans			    $68,766,952 	  $70,345,527   
	 Interest on investments and cash equivalents		   30,303,579 	  34,517,337 

				     99,070,531 	  104,862,864  

Interest expense: 
	 Dividends on members’ shares		   13,181,384 	  20,021,646  		
	 Interest on borrowed funds		   768,937 	  827,038  

				     13,950,321 	  20,848,684 

		  Net interest income		   85,120,210 	  84,014,180  
 
Provision for loan losses 			    13,508,060 	  9,680,419 

		  Net interest income after provision  
		  for loan losses	  		  71,612,150 	  74,333,761  

Noninterest income: 
	 Loan origination			    4,358,622	  4,204,825  
	 Loan late and overlimit fees		   3,016,033	  2,855,465  
	 Loan servicing			    1,584,542	  1,292,533   
	 Gain on sale of loans			    4,974,616	  3,522,637  
	 Nonsufficient fund and overdraft fees	 	  18,332,497	  18,764,858  
	 Debit card interchange			    17,315,267	  16,262,884  
	 Credit card interchange			    8,193,995	  7,978,820   
	 Insurance and investment			    4,155,357	  3,676,343  
	 Gain on sale of investments		   1,142,164	  12,019  
	 Other noninterest income			    3,550,339	  4,518,279  

				     66,623,432 	  63,088,663  

Noninterest expenses: 
	 Salaries and benefits	 	 	  51,214,260 	  47,435,562  
	 Occupancy			    12,269,062 	  12,163,791  
	 Data processing			    9,294,614 	  8,343,096  
	 Debit card processing			    4,580,474 	  4,340,080  
	 Credit card processing			    3,233,799 	  3,694,561  
	 Cash back rebate on credit cards		   5,233,812 	  5,185,143  
	 Loan servicing, net			    6,097,311  	  5,226,997  
	 Member education and promotion		   1,840,680 	  1,811,310  
	 Professional and outside services		   1,763,860 	  1,647,985  
	 Federal supervision and insurance		   3,107,353 	  6,964,895  
	 Uncollectible accounts			    1,783,991 	  1,357,309  
	 Other operating expense			    7,163,491  	  6,854,876 

				     107,582,707 	  105,025,605 

	 Net income			    $30,652,875 	  $32,396,819  

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

	 2013	 2012
Net income			    $30,652,875 	  $32,396,821 
Other comprehensive income: 
	 Net change in defined benefit plan obligations		  8,039,141 	  (13,076,437)  
	 Net change in supplemental executive  
			  retirement plan (SERP)		   852,607 	  (186,817) 
	 Net change in postretirement benefit plan obligations	  1,084,407 	  (2,148,193)  
	 Unrealized holding (losses) gains on investments  
	 	 	classified as available for sale, net	 	  (18,116,480)	  4,424,864  
	 Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in 
			  income from sale of securities available for sale	   (1,142,164)	  (12,019)

				     (9,282,489)	  (10,998,602) 

	 Comprehensive income 			    $21,370,386  	  $21,398,219 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Members’ Equity

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
						      Accumulated 
			   --------------------------	 Retained Earnings	 --------------------------	 Other 
			   Regular			   Comprehensive 
			   Reserve	 Unappropriated	 Total	 Income (Loss)

Balance, June 30, 2011		  $24,832,711	  $290,218,841 	 $315,051,552 	  $5,473,441 

	 Net income		  - 	  32,396,819  	  32,396,819  	 - 
	 Net change in defined  
	 	 	benefit plan obligations	 - 	 - 	 - 	  (13,076,437)
	 Net change in SERP		  - 	 - 	 - 	  (186,817) 
	 Net change in postretirement 
	 	 benefit plan obligations	 -	 - 	 - 	  (2,148,193)
	 Unrealized holding gains on  
	 	 investments classified as  
		  available for sale, net	 - 	 - 	 - 	  4,412,845 

Balance, June 30, 2012	 24,832,711	  322,615,660  	  347,448,371 	  (5,525,161)

	 Net income		  - 	  30,652,875 	  30,652,875 	 - 
	 Net change in defined  
	 	 benefit plan obligations	 -	  - 	 - 	  8,039,141  
	 Net change in SERP		  - 	 - 	 - 	  852,607  
	 Net change in postretirement  
	 	 benefit plan obligations	 - 	 - 	 - 	  1,084,407  
	 Unrealized holding losses  
	 	 on investments classified  
		  as available for sale, net	 - 	 - 	 - 	  (19,258,644) 

Balance, June 30, 2013	 $24,832,711 	  $353,268,535  	 $378,101,246  	 $(14,807,650)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Redstone Federal Credit Union 
Annual Report 2013

Page 12

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
           	 2013	 2012                                                                                                                 

Cash flows from operating activities:
	 Net income	  $30,652,875 	  $32,396,819  
	 Adjustments to reconcile net income  
			   to net cash provided from operating activities:
		  Capitalization of mortgage servicing rights	  (1,635,670)	  (1,797,507) 
		  Amortization of mortgage servicing rights	  1,638,448  	  1,193,940   
		  Amortization of investment securities, net	  12,124,243 	  10,667,849  
		  Provision for loan losses	  13,508,060	  9,680,419  
		  Depreciation and amortization	  8,409,228	  8,176,697  
		  Writedowns of other real estate owned	  292,905 	  382,987   
		  (Loss) Gain on sale of other real estate owned	  162,613  	  (261,438) 
		  Gain on sale of investment securities	  (1,142,164) 	  (12,019)  
		  Impairment loss on investments	  153,651  	  94,547  
		  Other than temporary impairment 				 
			   of investment securities	 - 	  215,360  
		  Loss on disposition of property and  
			   equipment, net	  467,821 	  3,748  
		  Net change in: 
			   Loans held for sale	  (6,421,403)	  (5,730,436)  
			   Accrued interest receivable	  598,742  	  764,154   
			   Other assets	  110,445 	  (3,047,812)  
			   Accrued expenses and other liabilities	  (901,274)	  19,729,042  
				    Net cash provided by operating activities	  58,018,520 	  72,456,350 

Cash flows from investing activities:
		  Purchases of available for sale investments	  (379,898,490)	  (523,323,253)  
		  Proceeds from maturities of available  
			   for sale investments	  279,837,102 	  439,017,685   
		  Proceeds from sales of available  
			   for sale investments	  74,811,526 	  10,002,330  
		  Purchases of held to maturity investments	  (403,777,334)	  (483,357,534) 
		  Proceeds from maturities of held to  
			   maturity investments	  272,805,876  	  297,897,560   
		  Net change in other investments	  5,717,700 	  15,953,399   
		  Net change in loans to members	  (67,878,355)	  (39,280,952)  
		  Proceeds from sales of real estate owned	  1,553,412 	  4,690,297   
		  Increase in the NCUSIF deposit	  (1,948,866)	  (2,605,488)  
		  Proceeds from disposition of property  
			   and equipment	  3,102 	  9,081   
		  Purchases of property and equipment	  (7,417,196) 	  (6,482,196) 
					      $(226,191,523)	  $(287,479,071)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (cont.) 

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
           	 2013	 2012                                                                                                                 

Cash flows from financing activities:
	 Net increase in members’ shares	  $129,741,414 	  $228,382,303 
	 Proceeds from borrowed funds	  32,000,000  	  12,500,000   
	 Repayment of borrowed funds	  (9,593,716) 	  (14,507,252)	

Net cash from financing activities	  152,147,698 	  226,375,051 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents	  (16,025,305) 	  11,352,330  
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year	  138,577,477  	  127,225,147  
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year	  $122,552,172  	  $138,577,477 

Supplemental cash flows information:
	 Dividends paid on members’ shares  
		  and interest paid on borrowed funds	  $13,933,477  	  $20,900,331 

Noncash investing and financing activities:
	 Transfer of loans into other real estate owned	  $2,217,486  	  $1,411,423 

	 Transfer of other real estate owned into loans	 $       - 	  $2,748,195 

	 Other comprehensive loss	  $(9,282,489) 	  $(10,998,602)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Credit 
Union and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Redstone Services Group, LLC (RSG), and Red-
stone Consulting Group, LLC (RCG). RSG is engaged primarily in originating and selling 
student loans and selling alternative cash services to nonmember customers of modest 
means. RCG specializes in the development and support of software technology products, 
process improvements, and best practices for other credit unions and community banks. All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Nature of Operations

Redstone Federal Credit Union is a cooperative association holding a corporate charter 
under the provisions of the Federal Credit Union Act. Participation in the Credit Union 
is limited to those individuals who qualify for membership. The field of membership is 
defined in the Credit Union’s Charter and Bylaws.

Significant Accounting Policies

The Credit Union follows the accounting standards set by the Financial Accounting Stan-
dards Board (FASB). The FASB establishes accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP) that are followed to ensure consistent reporting of the 
financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows of the Credit Union. References to 
GAAP issued by the FASB in these footnotes are to The FASB Accounting Standards Codifica-
tion™ commonly referred to as the Codification.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial 
statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly sus-
ceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance 
for loan losses and the fair value of investment securities.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the date of the statement 
of financial condition but before the financial statements are available to be issued. The 
Credit Union recognizes in the financial statements the effects of all subsequent events 
that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the statement 
of financial condition, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the 
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financial statements. The Credit Union’s financial statements do not recognize subsequent 
events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the statement 
of financial condition but arose after the date of the statement of financial condition and 
before the financial statements are issued. 

Management of the Credit Union has evaluated subsequent events through September 4, 
2013, the date on which the financial statements were available to be issued.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Most of the Credit Union’s business activity is with its members who reside in the North 
Alabama area. The Credit Union may be exposed to credit risk from a regional economic 
standpoint, since a significant concentration of its borrowers work or reside in Alabama. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statements of financial condition and the statements of cash flow, 
cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, amounts due from financial institutions 
and highly liquid debt instruments classified as cash that were purchased with maturities of 
three months or less. Amounts due from financial institutions may, at times, exceed feder-
ally insured limits.

Investments

Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are 
classified as held to maturity and recorded at amortized cost. Securities not classified as held 
to maturity or trading, including equity securities with readily determinable fair values, 
are classified as available for sale and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses 
excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income. Gains and losses on 
the sale of investment securities are recognized on the trade date and determined using the 
specific identification method.

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest 
method over the terms of the securities. Declines in the fair value of held to maturity and 
available for sale securities below their cost that are deemed to be other than temporary 
are reflected in earnings as realized losses. In estimating other than temporary impairment 
losses, management considers (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value 
has been less than the amortized cost basis, (2) adverse conditions specifically related to the 
security, an industry, or a geographic area (for example, changes in the financial condition 
of the issuer of the security, or in the case of an asset-backed debt security, in the financial 
condition of the underlying loan obligors, including changes in technology or the discon-
tinuance of a segment of the business that may affect the future earnings potential of the 
issuer or underlying loan obligors of the security or changes in the quality of the credit 
enhancement),(3) the intent of the Credit Union to sell a security, and (4) whether it is more 
likely than not the Credit Union will have to sell the security before recovery of its cost basis.

If the Credit Union does not have the intent to sell a debt security prior to recovery and it is 
more likely than not that it will not have to sell the debt security prior to recovery, the secu-
rity would not be considered other than temporarily impaired unless there is a credit loss. 
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When the Credit Union does not intend to sell the security, and is it more likely than not, 
the entity will not have to sell the security before recovery of its cost basis, it will recognize 
the credit component of an other than temporary impairment of a debt security in earnings 
and the remaining portion in other comprehensive income.

Other investments are classified separately and are stated at cost. If such investments are 
deemed to be impaired, the recorded cost is reduced by the amount of impairment.

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) Stock

The Credit Union, as a member of the FHLB of Atlanta, is required to maintain an invest-
ment in capital stock of the FHLB which is based on the Credit Union’s total assets plus a 
percentage of outstanding advances. No ready market exists for the FHLB stock and it has 
no quoted market value.

Loans Held for Sale

Mortgage and student loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are 
carried at the lower of aggregate cost or estimated market value. Net unrealized losses are 
recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income. Gains and losses resulting 
from the sale of loans are determined on the specific-identification method and reflect the 
extent the sale proceeds, based on the contractual commitment entered into by the Credit 
Union and investor, exceed or are less than the credit in the loan. All sales are made without 
recourse.

Loans, Net

The Credit Union grants mortgage, commercial and consumer loans to members. The abil-
ity of the members to honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate and general 
economic conditions of the area.

Loans that the Credit Union has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or 
until maturity or payoff are stated at their outstanding unpaid principal balances, less an al-
lowance for loan losses and net deferred origination fees and costs. Interest income on loans 
is recognized over the term of the loan and is calculated using the simple interest method on 
principal amounts outstanding.

The accrual of interest income on loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 91 days past 
due, unless the credit is well-secured and in the process of collection. Other personal loans 
are typically charged off no later than 180 days past due. Past due status is based on the 
contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged off at 
an earlier date if the collection of principal and interest is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged off 
is reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-
basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to 
accrual status when all of the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought 
current and future payments are reasonably assured.
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Certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and are recognized as an adjustment to 
interest income using the interest method over the contractual life of the loans, adjusted for 
estimated prepayments based on the Credit Union’s historical prepayment experience.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through 
a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allow-
ance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is likely. Subsequent 
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based 
upon management’s periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical 
experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect 
the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of the underlying collateral and prevailing 
economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires estimates that 
are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available. In addition, 
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the 
Credit Union’s allowance for loan losses and may require the Credit Union to make addi-
tions to the allowance based on their judgment about information available to them at the 
time of their examinations.

The Credit Union’s allowance for loan losses is that amount considered adequate to absorb 
probable losses in the portfolio based on management’s evaluations of the size and current 
risk characteristics of the loan portfolio. Such evaluations consider prior loss experience, 
the risk rating and the levels of nonperforming loans. A loan is considered impaired when, 
based on current information and events, it is probable that the Credit Union will be unable 
to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the con-
tractual terms of the loan agreement or when the loan is subject to a troubled debt restruc-
turing. Specific allowances for loan losses are established for large impaired loans on an in-
dividual basis as required by the Codification. The specific allowances established for these 
loans are based on a thorough analysis of the most probable source of repayment, including 
the present value of the loan’s expected future cash flow, the loan’s estimated market value 
or the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral. General allowances are established 
for loans that can be grouped into pools based on similar characteristics as described in the 
Codification. In this process, general allowance factors are based on an analysis of histori-
cal charge-off experience and expected losses given default derived from the Credit Union’s 
internal risk rating process. These factors are developed and applied to the portfolio by loan 
type. The qualitative factors associated with the allowances are subjective and require a high 
degree of management judgment. These factors include the credit quality statistics, recent 
economic uncertainty, losses incurred from recent events and lagging data.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has 
been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the 
assets have been isolated from the Credit Union, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free 
of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange 
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the transferred assets, and (3) the Credit Union does not maintain effective control over the 
transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity or the 
ability to unilaterally cause the holder to return specific assets.

Loan Servicing

Servicing assets are recognized as separate assets when rights are acquired through purchase 
or through sale of financial assets. For sales of mortgage loans, a portion of the cost of 
originating the loan is allocated to the servicing right based on relative fair value. Fair value 
is based on market prices for comparable mortgage servicing contracts, when available, or, 
alternatively, is based on a valuation model that calculates the present value of estimated 
future net servicing income. The valuation model incorporates assumptions that market 
participants would use in estimating future net servicing income, such as the cost to service, 
the discount rate, the custodial earnings rate, an inflation rate, ancillary income, prepay-
ment speeds, and default rates and losses. Capitalized servicing rights are reported in other 
assets and are amortized into noninterest income in proportion to, and over the period of, 
the estimated future net servicing income of the underlying financial assets.

Servicing assets are evaluated for impairment based upon the fair value of the rights as 
compared to amortized cost. Impairment is determined by stratifying rights into tranches 
based on predominant risk characteristics, such as interest rate, loan type and investor type. 
Impairment is recognized through a valuation allowance for an individual tranche, to the 
extent that fair value is less than the capitalized amount for the tranche. If the Credit Union 
later determines that all or a portion of the impairment no longer exists for a particular 
tranche, a reduction of the allowance may be recorded as an increase to income.

Servicing fee income is recorded for fees earned for servicing loans. The fees are based on 
a contractual percentage of the outstanding principal or a fixed amount per loan and are 
recorded as income when earned. The amortization of mortgage servicing rights is netted 
against loan servicing fee income.

Property and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Land improvements, buildings, building improvements, leasehold 
improvements, and furniture and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated deprecia-
tion and amortization. Land improvements, buildings and building improvements, and 
furniture and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets, ranging from 2 to 40 years. The cost of leasehold improvements 
is amortized using the straight-line method over lesser of the useful life of the assets or the 
expected terms of the related leases. Expected terms include lease option periods to the 
extent the exercise of such options is reasonably assured. Management reviews premises and 
equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value may not be recoverable.

National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund (NCUSIF)  
Deposit and Insurance Premium

The deposit in the NCUSIF is in accordance with National Credit Union Administration 
(NCUA) regulations, which requires the maintenance of a deposit by each federally insured 
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Credit Union in an amount equal to 1 percent of its insured members’ shares. The deposit 
would be refunded to the Credit Union if its insurance coverage was terminated, if it con-
verted its insurance coverage to another source, or if management of the fund was trans-
ferred from the NCUA Board. The Credit Union is also required to pay an annual insurance 
premium equal to one-twelfth of 1 percent of total insured members’ shares, unless the 
payment is waived or reduced by the NCUA Board. 

In September 2011, the NCUA authorized a premium of 0.25% of insured shares to restore 
the operating levels of the NCUSIF. As a result of the premium assessment, the Credit 
Union recorded an expense of $6,600,003 included in noninterest expense in the accompa-
nying consolidated statement of income for the year ended June 30, 2012.

In September 2012, the NCUA authorized an assessment of 0.095% of insured shares for 
the Temporary Corporate Credit Union Stabilization Fund. As a result of the assessment, 
the Credit Union recorded an expense of $2,718,003 included in noninterest expense in the 
accompanying consolidated statement of income for the year ended June 30, 2013.  

On July 25, 2013, the NCUA announced a 2013 Corporate Stabilization assessment of 0.08% 
of credit unions’ insured shares. As a result of the assessment, the Credit Union estimates 
the cost of $2,385,980 will be recorded in fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Other Real Estate Owned

Real estate and other property acquired in full or partial settlement of loan obligations is 
referred to as other real estate owned. Other real estate owned is originally recorded in the 
Credit Union’s consolidated financial statements at fair value less any estimated costs to 
sell. When property is acquired through foreclosure or surrendered in lieu of foreclosure, the 
Credit Union measures the fair value of the property acquired against its recorded invest-
ment in the loan. If the fair value of the property at the time of acquisition is less than the 
recorded investment in the loan, the difference is charged to the allowance for loan losses. 
Any subsequent fluctuations in the fair value of other real estate owned are recorded against 
a valuation allowance for foreclosed assets, established through a charge to noninterest 
expense. All related operating or maintenance costs are charged to noninterest expense as 
incurred. Any subsequent gains or losses on the sale of other real estate owned are recorded 
in other income or expense as incurred.

Members’ Shares

Members’ shares are the savings deposit accounts of the owners of the Credit Union. Share 
ownership entitles the members to vote in the annual elections of the board of directors and 
on other corporate matters. Irrespective of the amount of shares owned, no member has 
more than one vote. Members’ shares are subordinated to all other liabilities of the Credit 
Union upon liquidation. Dividends on members’ shares are based on available earnings at 
the end of a dividend period and are not guaranteed by the Credit Union. Dividend rates are 
set by the Credit Union’s Board of Directors.
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Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Total advertising costs for the years ended June 
30, 2013 and 2012, were immaterial to the financial statements.

Income Taxes

The Credit Union is exempt, by statute, from federal income taxes and state income taxes. 
The Credit Union Service Organizations, Redstone Services Group, and Redstone Consulting 
Group, are limited liability corporations and are not subject to federal and state income taxes.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Credit Union has a qualified, noncontributory defined benefit pension plan and a 
postretirement benefit plan covering certain employees as more fully disclosed in Note 11. 
The Credit Union’s policy is to fund an amount in excess of the minimum amount required 
under Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA).

Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses 
be included in net income. Certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains 
and losses on available for sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the mem-
bers’ equity section of the statements of financial condition. 

Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Credit Union has entered into off-balance sheet 
financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit and commitments under 
credit card arrangements.  Such financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated 
financial statements when they are funded or when related fees are incurred or received.

Reclassifications

Certain account reclassifications have been made to the 2012 consolidated financial state-
ments in order to conform to classifications used in the current year with no impact on 
providing reported net income or members’ equity.
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Note 2. Investments

Investments classified as available for sale consist of the following at June 30:

	 Amortized 	 Unrealized	 Unrealized	 Fair 
	 Cost	 Gains	 Losses	 Value

June 30, 2013:
	 Federal agency securities	  $641,053,478 	  $5,730,784 	  $(8,583,653)	  $638,200,609
	 Mortgage-backed securities 	 256,419,268 	 3,042,113 	  (2,444,494)	 257,016,887
	 Municipal bonds  
	 (auction rate securities)	 25,925,000	 -	 (20,352)	 25,904,648
	 Mutual funds	 140	 -	 -	 140

		  $923,397,886	 $8,772,897	 $(11,048,499)	 $921,122,284
June 30, 2012:
	 Federal agency securities	 $647,111,471	 $11,418,563	 $         -	 $658,530,034 
	 Mortgage-backed securities	 229,042,043	 6,322,540	 (439,760)	 234,924,823
	 Municipal bonds  
	 (auction rate securities)	 26,449,723	 -	 (318,301)	 26,131,422
	 Mutual funds	 140	 -	 -	 140

		  $902,603,377	 $17,741,103	 $(758,061)	 $919,586,419

Investments classified as held to maturity consist of the following:

	 Amortized 	 Unrealized	 Unrealized	 Fair 
	 Cost	 Gains	 Losses	 Value

June 30, 2013:
	 Federal agency securities	  $1,023,808,126 	  $8,045,666 	  $(12,648,748)	  $1,019,205,044 
	 Mortgage-backed securities 	  17,285,218 	  1,335 	  (198,183)	  17,088,370

		  $1,041,093,344	 $8,047,001	 $(12,846,931)	 $1,036,293,414
June 30, 2012:
	 Federal agency securities	 $902,168,456	 $16,285,550	 $(36,700)	 $918,417,306  
	 Mortgage-backed securities	 14,633,806	 81,133	 (5,272)	 14,709,667

		  $916,802,262	 $16,366,683	 $(41,972)	 $933,126,973

At June 30, 2013, the Credit Union held $25.9 million (amortized cost basis) of auction rate 
securities (ARS) classified as municipal bonds. The assets underlying these three individual 
investments are primarily student loans, which are rated A3 by Moody’s and substantially 
guaranteed by the U.S. government under the Federal Family Education Loan Program 
(FFELP). Historically, these securities have provided liquidity through a Dutch auction pro-
cess that resets the applicable interest rate at predetermined intervals every seven to 49 days. 
However, these auctions began to fail in the first quarter of 2008. The securities continue to 
pay interest and the issuers are calling a portion of the related principal amounts periodi-
cally. Maturity dates for these investments are in 2046 and 2047.
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Gains and losses on the sale of investment securities are recognized on the trade date 
and determined using the specific identification method. The proceeds on the sales were 
$10,002,330 for the year ended June 30, 2012. Gross realized gains on sales of investment 
securities totaled $12,019 for the year ended June 30, 2012.  The proceeds on the sales were 
$74,811,526 for the year ended June 30, 2013. Gross realized gains on sales of investment 
securities totaled $1,142,164 for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Securities with book value of $20,775,000 and $23,502,803 have been pledged as collateral 
to secure advances from the Federal Reserve Bank discount window as of June 30, 2013 and 
2012, respectively, as more fully disclosed in Note 8.

Investments by contractual maturity as of June 30, 2013, are summarized as follows:

	 Available for Sale 	 Held to Maturity

	 Amortized	 Fair	 Amortized	 Fair 
	 Cost	 Value	 Cost	 Value	 Other
Less than 1 year  
     maturity	  $78,280,708 	  $78,875,260 	  $112,551,865	 $113,509,430 	 -
1-5 years  
	 maturity	  433,647,609 	  435,165,159 	  698,497,038 	  700,453,214 	 - 
5-10 years  
	 maturity	  129,125,162 	  124,160,191 	  212,759,223 	  205,242,400 	 - 
Over 10 years  
	 maturity	  25,925,000 	  25,904,648 	 -	 -	 -
Mortgage-backed  
	 securities	  256,419,268 	  257,016,887 	  17,285,218 	  17,088,370 	 -
Mutual funds	 140	 140	 -	 -	 -
Other investments	 -	 -	 -	 -	 6,269,348

		   $923,397,887 	  $921,122,285 	  $1,041,093,344 	  $1,036,293,414 	  $6,269,348 

Expected maturities of mortgage-backed securities may differ from contractual maturities 
because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay the obligations and are, therefore, 
classified separately with no specific maturity date. Mutual funds have been classified with 
no contractual maturity.
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Gross unrealized losses and fair value by length of time that the individual securities have 
been in a continuous unrealized loss position at June 30 are as follows:

	 Fair Value Associated With	 Continuous Unrealized  
	 Unrealized Losses Existing For 	 Losses Existing For 

	 Less Than	 More Than	 Less Than	 More Than	 Total Unrealized 
	 12 Months	 12 Months	 12 Months	 12 Months	 Losses

June 30, 2013:
Available for Sale
Municipal bonds  
	 (auction rate  
	     securities)	 $25,904,648 	 $    -	  $     20,352 	 $    -	  $     20,352 
Federal agency  
	 securities 	  346,207,206 	 -	  8,583,653 	 -	  8,583,653  
Mortgage-backed  
	 securities	  137,701,779 	  233,878 	  2,441,879 	  2,615 	  2,444,494 

		   $509,813,633 	  $233,878 	  $11,045,884 	  $2,615 	  $11,048,499 

Held to Maturity
Federal agency  
	 securities	  $493,150,136 	 $    -	  $12,648,748 	 $    -	  $12,648,748 
Mortgage-backed  
	 securities	  12,814,925  	  - 	   198,183  	  - 	   198,183

 		    $505,965,061  	 $   - 	   $12,846,931 	 $    - 	   $12,846,931  

June 30, 2012:
Available for Sale
Municipal bonds  
	 (auction rate  
	     securities)	 $      -	 $26,131,422 	 $     -	  $318,301 	  $318,301 
Federal agency  
	 securities	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -
Mortgage-backed  
	 securities	  40,586,580 	  2,058,260 	  113,507 	  326,253 	  439,760 

		   $40,586,580 	  $28,189,682 	  $113,507 	  $644,554 	  $758,061 

Held to Maturity
Federal agency  
	 securities	   $19,963,300  	   $     -	   $36,700  	 $     -	   $36,700  
Mortgage-backed  
	 securities	   6,424,272   	 - 	    5,272   	 - 	    5,272 

 		     $26,387,572   	 $    - 	    $41,972  	  $    - 	    $41,972   
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During fiscal years 2013 and 2012, the Credit Union performed an analysis, with the assis-
tance of an independent third party, on one nonagency whole loan mortgage-backed secu-
rity in the investment portfolio for other than temporary impairment (OTTI). This security 
was in a net unrealized loss position for more than 12 months and was downgraded in 2012 
to below investment grade status. The security was in a net unrealized gain position as of 
June 30, 2013. Other than temporary impairment is considered to have occurred (1) if the 
Credit Union intends to sell the security; (2) if it is more likely than not the Credit Union 
will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis; or (3) the pres-
ent value of expected future cash flows is not sufficient to recover the entire amortized cost 
basis of the security.

As of June 30, 2012, the analysis projected credit impairment of $419,326 and the Credit 
Union took an additional $215,360 in OTTI charges to bring the book value to $2,291,326. 
During the year ended June 30, 2012, the security was downgraded from a C rating to a D 
by S&P. As of June 30, 2013, the projected OTTI is $271,937, which is a lesser amount than 
the remaining OTTI currently held on the Credit Union’s books.  The principal balance as 
of June 30, 2013, is $2,071,259. During the 12-month period ended June 30, 2013, realized 
losses totaled $153,651 and interest totaled $140,576. 
	 2013	 2012
Estimated credit losses, beginning balance	 $419,326	 $313,446
Additions for credit losses not previously recognized	 -	 215,360
Reduction for increases in cash flows	 -	 (109,480)
	 Estimated credit losses, ending balance	 $419,326	 $419,326

As of June 30, 2013, unrealized losses on the remainder of the Credit Union’s investment 
portfolio were primarily attributable to market interest rate volatility and a significant 
widening of interest rate spreads across market sectors relating to the continued illiquidity 
and uncertainty in financial markets, rather than to credit risk. Current characteristics of 
each security owned, such as delinquency rates, foreclosure levels, credit enhancements, and 
projected losses, are reviewed periodically by management. Accordingly, it is expected these 
securities would not be settled at a price less than the amortized cost of the Credit Union’s 
investment.

Because the Credit Union does not have the intent to sell these investments and it is not 
likely the Credit Union will be required to sell these investments before anticipated recovery 
of fair value, which may be at maturity, the Credit Union did not consider any more of its 
investments to be other-than temporarily impaired as of June 30, 2013.

Other investments consist of the following as of June 30:
	 2013	 2012
Certificates of deposit in corporate credit unions	 $         -	 $  6,000,000
FHLB of Atlanta stock	 6,269,300	 5,987,000
Fannie Mae stock	 48	 48
					     $6,269,348	 $11,987,048
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Certificates of deposit are generally nonnegotiable and nontransferable, and may incur 
substantial penalties for withdrawal prior to maturity.

The Credit Union views its investment in FHLB of Atlanta stock as a long-term investment. 
Accordingly, when evaluating for impairment, the value is determined based on the ultimate 
recoverability of the par value rather than recognizing temporary declines in value. The de-
termination of whether a decline affects the ultimate recoverability is influenced by factors 
such as 1) the significance of the decline in net assets of the institution as compared to the 
investment amount and length of time a decline has persisted, 2) impact of legislative and 
regulatory changes on the institution, and 3) the liquidity position of the institution.

The Credit Union does not believe that its investment in the FHLB of Atlanta stock is 
impaired as of this date. However, this estimate could change in the near term by the fol-
lowing: 1) significant other than temporary losses are incurred on the FHLB of Atlanta’s 
mortgage-backed securities causing a significant decline in their regulatory capital status, 2) 
the economic losses resulting from credit deterioration on the FHLB of Atlanta’s mortgage-
backed securities increases significantly, and 3) capital preservation strategies being utilized 
by the FHLB of Atlanta become ineffective.

Note 3. Loans, Net

Loans consist of the following at June 30:

		  Loans 
		  Individually	 Loans Collectively 
		  Evaluated for	 Evaluated for 
		  Impairment	 Impairment	 Total

June 30, 2013: 
Member business loans			   $4,028,610	 $94,775,446	 $98,804,056 
Residential real estate and home equity	 4,005,386	 436,178,440	 440,183,826 
Consumer loans			   6,394,664	 747,529,926	 753,924,590

	 Total loans			   $14,428,660	 $1,278,483,812	 $1,292,912,472

Less allowance for loan losses				    (19,417,148)

							       $1,273,495,324
June 30, 2012: 
Member business loans			   $4,584,188	 $93,458,686	 $98,042,874 
Residential real estate and home equity	 1,633,807	 410,202,852	 411,836,659 
Consumer loans			   4,345,530	 724,997,552	 729,343,082

	 Total loans			   $10,563,525	 $1,228,659,090	 $1,239,222,615

Less allowance for loan losses				    (17,880,099)

							       $1,221,342,516



Redstone Federal Credit Union 
Annual Report 2013

Page 26

A summary of the activity in the allowance for loan losses is as follows for the years ended 
June 30:

		  Residential 
		  Real Estate 
	 Member 	 and Home 
	 Business	 Equity	 Consumer	 Total

June 30, 2013:
Balance at beginning of year	  $2,806,564 	 $2,156,817	  $12,916,718	  $17,880,099
	 Provision for loan losses 	 (629,297) 	 3,565,075	 10,572,282	 13,508,060
	 Loans charged off	 (22,389)	 (2,291,232)	 (13,375,673)	 (15,689,294)
	 Recoveries of loans	 55,438	 368,303	 3,294,542	 3,718,283

Balance at end of year	 $2,210,316	 $3,798,963	 $13,407,869	 $19,417,148
June 30, 2012:
Balance at beginning of year	 $3,082,599	 $2,101,037	 $13,987,231	 $19,170,867 
	 Provision for loan losses	 (863,373)	 1,475,576	 9,068,216	 9,680,419
	 Loans charged off	 (99,202)	 (1,587,169)	 (12,942,516)	 (14,628,887)
	 Recoveries of loans	 686,540	 167,373	 2,803,787	 3,657,700

Balance at end of year	 $2,806,564	 $2,156,817	 $12,916,718	 $17,880,099

The Credit Union offers nontraditional mortgage loans to its members. These loans include 
hybrid/balloon, which consist of loans that are fixed for an initial period of three, five, seven, 
or ten years. After this period, the mortgages are converted to a variable rate using the fully 
indexed rate, which can result in significant payment adjustment to the borrower.

Nontraditional mortgage loans may have significantly different credit risk characteristics 
than traditional fixed and variable rate mortgages. However, the Credit Union believes it has 
established prudent underwriting standards as well as adequate risk management func-
tions to monitor these additional risks. A loan is considered impaired, in accordance with 
the Codification, when based on current information and events, it is probable the Credit 
Union will be unable to collect all amounts due from the borrower in accordance with the 
contractual terms of the loan. Impaired loans include loans modified into troubled debt 
restructurings where concessions have been granted to borrowers experiencing financial 
difficulties. These concessions could include a reduction in the interest rate on the loan and 
payment extensions. 

The allowance for loan losses is considered by the Credit Union as adequate to cover 
probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio at June 30, 2013. However, no assurance can 
be given the Credit Union will not sustain loan losses that exceed the allowance, or that 
subsequent evaluation of the loan portfolio, in light of then prevailing factors, including 
economic conditions, credit quality of the assets comprising the portfolio and the ongoing 
evaluation process, will not require significant changes in the allowance for loan losses.

Management considers a loan to be impaired when, based on current information and 
events, it is determined the Credit Union will not be able to collect all amounts due according  
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to the loan contract, including scheduled interest payments. Determination of impairment 
is treated the same across all classes of loans. When management identifies a loan to be 
impaired, the impairment is measured based on the present value of expected future cash 
flows, and discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, except when the sole (remaining) 
source of repayment for the loan is the operation or liquidation of the collateral. In those 
cases, the current fair value of the collateral, less selling costs, is utilized instead of dis-
counted cash flows. If management determines the value of the impaired loan is less than 
the recorded investment in the loan, net of previous charge-offs, deferred loan fees or costs 
and unamortized premium or discount, impairment is recognized through an allowance or 
a charge-off to the allowance.

When the ultimate collectability of the total principal of an impaired loan is in doubt and 
the loan is in nonaccrual status, all payments are applied to principal under the cost recov-
ery method. When the ultimate collectability of the total principal of an impaired loan is 
not in doubt and the loan is on nonaccrual status, contractual interest is credited to interest 
income when received under the cash basis method. 

The following table includes the recorded investment and unpaid principal balances for 
impaired financing receivables with the associated allowance amount.  Also presented are 
the average recorded investments in the impaired loans and the related amount of interest 
recognized during the time within the period the impaired loans were impaired. The average 
balances are calculated based on the month end balances of the financing receivables of the 
period reported.
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Information about impaired loans is as follows as of and for the years ended June 30:

		  Unpaid		  Average	 Interest 
	 Recorded	 Principal	 Related 	 Recorded	 Income 
	 Investment	 Balance	 Allowance	 Investment	 Recognized

June 30, 2013
With an allowance recorded 
Member business loans  
	 Real estate secured 	 $999,933 	 $999,933	  $53,850 	 $1,424,854	  $      - 
	 SBA Guaranteed	 2,380,778 	 2,380,778	  448,238 	 2,526,993	         -  
	 Other secured 	  14,719 	 14,719	  14,719 	 21,379	         - 

  Total member  
  business loans	  $3,395,430 	  $3,395,430 	  $516,807 	  $3,973,226 	  $      - 

Residential real estate 
   and home equity  
	 First mortgage 	 $2,445,615 	 $2,445,615	  $476,587 	 $2,483,528	  $      - 
	 Home equity lines  
         of credit	 996,963 	 996,963	  905,343 	 1,036,687	        -  

  Total real estate  
  and home equity	  $3,442,578 	  $3,442,578 	 $1,381,930	  $3,520,215 	  $      - 

Consumer loans - collateralized  
	 Automobile 	 $3,327,354 	 $3,327,354	  $1,249,657 	 $3,518,607	  $      -	
Indirect automobile 	 1,032,995	 1,028,336	 378,558	 1,100,834	        - 
	 Other secured 	  141,947 	 141,947	  63,923 	 144,238	        - 

  Total consumer loans 
    - collateralized	  $4,502,296 	  $4,497,637 	 $1,692,138	  $4,763,679 	  $      - 

Consumer loans - unsecured  
	 Unsecured	 $876,298 	 $876,298	  $380,637	 $909,341	  $      -	
Credit cards	 42,664 	 42,664	  42,664 	 103,634	        -  

  Total consumer loans 
    - unsecured	  $918,962 	  $918,962 	  $423,301	  $1,012,975 	  $      - 

Total impaired loans with 
an allowance recorded	  $12,259,266 	  $12,254,607 	 $4,014,176	  $13,270,095 	  $      - 



Redstone Federal Credit Union 
Annual Report 2013

Page 29

		  Unpaid		  Average	 Interest 
	 Recorded	 Principal	 Related 	 Recorded	 Income 
	 Investment	 Balance	 Allowance	 Investment	 Recognized

Without an allowance recorded 
Member business loans  
	 Real estate secured 	 $215,409 	 $215,409	  $      - 	 $219,148	  $      - 
	 SBA Guaranteed	 417,771 	 417,771	             - 	 448,942	    - 

  Total member  
  business loans	  $633,180 	  $633,180 	 $      - 	  $668,090 	  $      - 

Residential real estate 
   and home equity  
	 First mortgage 	 $408,622 	 $408,622	  $      - 	 $420,806	  $      -	
Second mortgage	 24,321	 24,321	             - 	 24,771	 -  
	 Home equity lines  
         of credit	 129,865 	 129,865	             -  	 131,103	 -  

  Total real estate  
  and home equity	  $562,808 	  $562,808 	  $      - 	  $576,680 	  $      - 

Consumer loans - collateralized  
	 Automobile 	 $445,725 	 $445,725	  $      -  	 $562,208	  $      - 
	 Indirect automobile 	 396,039	 395,290	 - 	 510,359	    - 
	 Other secured 	  131,642 	 131,049	 -  	 139,682	    - 

  Total consumer loans 
    - collateralized	  $973,406 	  $972,064 	  $      -	  $1,212,249 	  $      - 

Total impaired loans without 
an allowance recorded	  $2,169,394 	  $2,168,052 	  $      -	  $2,457,019 	  $      - 

Total	  $14,428,660 	  $14,422,659 	 $ 4,014,176	  $15,727,114 	  $      - 
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		  Unpaid		  Average	 Interest 
	 Recorded	 Principal	 Related 	 Recorded	 Income 
	 Investment	 Balance	 Allowance	 Investment	 Recognized

June 30, 2012
With an allowance recorded 
Member business loans  
	 Real estate secured 	 $1,733,901	 $1,733,901	  $  56,334 	 $1,008,829	  $      - 
	 SBA Guaranteed	 1,775,097	 1,775,097	  176,989 	 2,366,327	  $      -  
	 Other secured 	 45,288	 45,288	 45,288	 58,031	  $      - 

  Total member  
  business loans	  $3,554,286 	  $3,554,286	  $278,611 	  $3,433,187 	  $      - 

Residential real estate 
   and home equity  
	 First mortgage 	 $  885,406 	 $  885,406	  $   80,247 	 $  995,343	  $      - 
	 Home equity lines  
         of credit	 268,221	 268,221	  172,528	 268,221	        -  

  Total real estate  
  and home equity	  $1,153,627 	  $1,153,627 	  $252,775	  $1,263,564 	  $      - 

Consumer loans - collateralized  
	 Automobile 	 $2,007,222	 $2,007,222	  $ 927,852	 $788,962	  $      - 
	 Indirect automobile 	 1,088,045	 1,084,204	 434,134	 481,610	        - 
	 Other secured 	 66,718	 66,718	  36,503 	 110,016	        - 

  Total consumer loans 
    - collateralized	  $3,161,985	  $3,158,144 	 $1,398,489	  $1,380,588	  $      - 

Consumer loans - unsecured  
	 Unsecured	 $272,221 	 $272,221	  $272,221	 $182,509	  $      - 
	 Credit cards	 133,656 	 133,656	  133,656 	 123,924	        -  

  Total consumer loans 
    - unsecured	  $405,877 	  $405,877 	  $405,877	  $306,433 	  $      - 

Total impaired loans with 
an allowance recorded	  $8,275,775 	  $8,271,934 	 $2,335,752	  $6,383,772 	  $      -
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		  Unpaid		  Average	 Interest 
	 Recorded	 Principal	 Related 	 Recorded	 Income 
	 Investment	 Balance	 Allowance	 Investment	 Recognized

Without an allowance recorded 
Member business loans  
	 Real estate secured 	 $   111,911	 $   111,911	  $      - 	 $   111,911	  $      - 
	 SBA Guaranteed	 917,991	 917,991	   - 	 942,075	    - 

  Total member  
  business loans	  $1,029,902 	  $1,029,902 	  $     - 	  $1,053,986	  $     - 

Residential real estate 
   and home equity  
	 First mortgage 	 $251,835	 $251,835	  $      - 	 $252,999	  $      - 
	 Second mortgage	 25,094	 25,094	 - 	 25,363	 -  
	 Home equity lines  
         of credit	 203,251	 203,251	 -  	 204,559	  -  

  Total real estate  
  and home equity	  $480,180 	  $480,180 	  $     - 	  $482,921 	  $     - 

Consumer loans - collateralized  
	 Automobile 	 $361,748	 $361,748	  $      -  	 $379,152	  $      - 
	 Indirect automobile 	 374,054	 373,604	 - 	 397,202	   -  
	 Other secured 	 41,866 	 41,559	 -  	 42,431	   - 

  Total consumer loans 
    - collateralized	  $777,668	  $776,911 	  $     -	  $818,785 	  $     - 

Total impaired loans without 
an allowance recorded	  $2,287,750	  $2,286,993	  $     -	  $2,355,692	  $     - 

Total	  $10,563,525 	 $10,558,927 	 $2,335,752	  $8,739,464 	  $     -

Credit Quality Indicators

The Credit Union utilizes internal risk ratings for its credit quality indicators. The internal 
risk ratings (1) provide a basis for evaluating, monitoring, and reporting the overall quality 
of the loan portfolio, (2) promptly identify deterioration of loan quality and the need for 
remedial action, and (3) emphasize areas requiring upgrading of policies, procedures, or 
documentation.

The internal risk ratings are as follows:

For member business loans, management’s judgment about the quality of each indi-
vidual loan is made at the time the loan is granted and the collectability of each loan is 
reviewed periodically and changed when warranted, based on the status of the loan or 
business. Loans are classified on a five-point system ranging from excellent to probable 
loss. Loans classified as Excellent exhibit exemplary credit quality. Satisfactory loans are 
worthy of credit extensions, but may not exhibit the characteristics of desired underwriting 
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standards. Loans on the Watch List represent unfavorable payment trends or unac-
ceptable business credit. Loans classified as Doubtful have deteriorated and there is no 
defined source of repayment, identified deficiencies cannot be corrected, and loan loss is 
expected. Probable Loss loans have no repayment ability and loan loss is certain. 

Real estate loans, home equity, and consumer loans are generally risk based priced at the 
time the loan is made based on the borrower’s or co-borrower’s beacon score. Loans are 
classified as A, B, C, D, or E. Loans classified as A are the highest quality and the borrow 
current beacon score is in the highest desirable range. E loans are generally loans with a 
beacon score below 620.  Loans that are classified as not rated were either made prior to 
risk based pricing implementation or the borrower has no established credit score avail-
able.  Real estate loans in the Not Rated category are loans granted prior to April 2011 
and were generally approved based on strict underwriting guidelines.

The following table presents the credit exposure of the loan classes as of June 30:

2013

Member	 Real Estate		  SBA	 Other	  
Business Loans	 Secured	 Unsecured	 Guaranteed	 Secured	 Total

Excellent 	 $25,336,966 	 $       -	  $1,366,330 	 $432,581	 $27,135,877
Satisfactory	 56,101,940 	 736,129	  4,244,860 	 210,849	  61,293,778 
Watch 	 3,539,356 	 44,290	  574,321 	 -	  4,157,967
Doubtful	  3,554,243 	  64,530	  431,826 	  - 	  4,050,599
Probable Loss	 114,187	 -	 2,036,929	 14,719	 2,165,835

	 Total	  $88,646,692	  $844,949 	  $8,654,266	  $658,149 	 $98,804,056 

Residential real estate	 First 	 Second	 Home Equity	  
and home equity	 Mortgage	 Mortgage	 Lines of Credit	 Total

Not Rated		  $147,800,004	 $1,161,019	 $80,797,879	 $229,758,902
A				    88,223,539	 424,745	 40,376,843	 129,025,127
B				    24,609,537	 65,395	 16,417,129	 41,092,061
C				    17,261,343	 131,744	 8,439,554	 25,832,641
D				    5,341,696	 -	 3,222,637	 8,564,333
E				    3,494,543	 -	 2,416,219	 5,910,762

	 Total		  $286,730,662	 $1,782,903	 $151,670,261	 $ 440,183,826
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2013

Consumer Loans	  	 Indirect		   
- collateralized	 Automobile	 Automobile	 Other Secured	 Total

Not Rated		  $      123,358	 $       75,887	 $  4,141,706	 $     4,340,951 
A				    115,593,308	 54,751,388	 45,451,796	 215,796,492 
B				    58,211,730	 25,488,130	 22,118,845	 105,818,705 
C				    36,416,694	 15,192,222	 7,920,821	 59,529,737 
D				    22,217,065	 5,629,393	 2,856,940	 30,703,398 
E				    26,563,907	 2,960,987	 1,968,724	 31,493,618

	 Total		  $259,126,062	 $104,098,007	 $84,458,832	 $447,682,901

Consumer Loans	  	 Credit 
- unsecured	 Unsecured	 Cards	 Total

Not Rated		  $      7,945,289	 $   2,599,285	 $  10,544,574 
A				    51,300,469	 100,854,027	 152,154,496 
B				    32,673,303	 40,724,368	 73,397,671 
C				    17,653,413	 15,525,403	 33,178,816 
D				    7,270,201	 8,733,776	 16,003,977 
E				    6,484,404	 14,477,751	 20,962,155

	 Total		  $123,327,079	 $182,914,610	 $306,241,689

2012

Member	 Real Estate		  SBA	 Other	  
Business Loans	 Secured	 Unsecured	 Guaranteed	 Secured	 Total

Excellent 	 $26,276,121 	 $      -	  $2,085,394	 $   96,870	  $28,458,385
Satisfactory	 57,245,057 	 786,128	  4,978,199	 808,234	  63,817,618
Watch 	 1,048,727 	 61,453	  976,977	 -	  2,087,157 
Doubtful	 521,593	  34,800	 101,710	 10,910	 669,013
Probable Loss	 755,609	 -	 2,217,547	 37,545	 3,010,701

	 Total	  $85,847,107	  $882,381 	  $10,359,827	  $953,559 	 $98,042,874 

Residential real estate	 First 	 Second	 Home Equity	  
and home equity	 Mortgage	 Mortgage	 Lines of Credit	 Total

Not Rated		  $193,122,039	 $1,608,069	 $95,744,144	 $290,474,252
A				    42,750,280	 347,569	 30,909,708	 74,007,557
B				    10,495,561	 52,879	 13,186,983	 23,735,423
C				    7,016,036	 113,576	 7,643,959	 14,773,571
D				    3,258,590	 -	 2,280,885	 5,539,475
E				    1,584,714	 -	 1,721,667	 3,306,381

	 Total		  $258,227,220	 $2,122,093	 $151,487,346	 $ 411,836,659
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2012

Consumer Loans	  	 Indirect		   
- collateralized	 Automobile	 Automobile	 Other Secured	 Total

Not Rated		  $      327,724	 $      163,585	 $  4,894,102	 $     5,385,411 
A				    102,034,253	 65,198,783	 35,667,869	 202,900,905 
B				    50,739,567	 33,084,141	 16,842,565	 100,666,273 
C				    41,071,528	 22,218,802	 7,525,851	 70,816,181 
D				    19,561,670	 6,071,254	 1,872,814	 27,505,738 
E				    22,205,232	 3,110,839	 1,268,915	 26,584,986

	 Total		  $235,939,974	 $129,847,404	 $68,072,116	 $433,859,494

Consumer Loans	  	 Credit 
- unsecured	 Unsecured	 Cards	 Total

Not Rated		  $     10,641,215	 $   2,491,297	 $  13,132,512 
A				    41,801,641	 101,427,619	 143,229,260 
B				    27,752,877	 41,331,207	 69,084,084 
C				    18,687,770	 15,050,231	 33,738,001 
D				    6,403,730	 9,416,230	 15,819,960 
E				    5,865,780	 14,613,991	 20,479,771

	 Total		  $111,153,013	 $184,330,575	 $295,483,588

The following table is an aging analysis of loans receivable as of June 30:

2013

							       Recorded 
				    Total			   Investment 
	 30-59 Days	 60-89 Days	 90 Days &	 Past	  	 Total	 > 90 Days & 
	 Past Due	 Past Due	 Greater	 Due	 Current	 Loans	 Accruing

Member business loans  
	 Real estate secured 	 $27,998 	 $   -	  $41,132 	 $69,130	  $88,577,562	 $88,646,692	 $     -
	 Unsecured	 230	 8,071	 100,748	 109,049	 735,900	 844,949	     -
	 SBA guaranteed	 33,690 	 -	 2,419,975	 2,453,665	  6,200,601	 8,654,266	     - 
	 Other secured	 -	 -	 14,719	 14,719	 643,430	 658,149	 -

Residential real estate 
and home equity 
	 First mortgage	 -	 714,288	 1,113,222	 1,827,510	 284,903,152	 286,730,662	 -
	 Second mortgage	 -	 20,335	 -	 20,335	 1,762,568	 1,782,903	 -
	 Home equity lines  
         of credit	 714,936	 220,295	 425,087	 1,360,318	 150,309,943	 151,670,261	 -

Consumer loans - 
collateralized 
	 Automobile	 6,344,101	 1,355,257	 2,682,450	 10,381,808	 248,744,254	 259,126,062	 - 
	 Indirect automobile	2,155,290	 397,138	 1,051,055	 3,603,483	 100,494,524	 104,098,007	 - 
	 Other secured	 827,956	 182,132	 135,469	 1,145,557	 83,313,275	 84,458,832	 -

Consumer loans -  
unsecured 
	 Unsecured	 2,028,890	 494,813	 621,734	 3,145,437	 120,181,642	 123,327,079	 - 
	 Credit cards	 2,429,979	 683,265	 1,106,124	 4,219,368	 178,695,242	 182,914,610	 -

 Total	  $14,563,070 	 $4,075,594 	  $9,711,715	  $28,350,379 	 $1,264,562,093	 $1,292,912,472	 $    - 



Redstone Federal Credit Union 
Annual Report 2013

Page 35

2012

							       Recorded 
				    Total			   Investment 
	 30-60 Days	61-89 Days	 90 Days &	 Past	  	 Total	 > 90 Days & 
	 Past Due	 Past Due	 Greater	 Due	 Current	 Loans	 Accruing

Member business loans  
	 Real estate secured 	$111,911 	 $      -	  $755,609 	 $867,520	  $84,979,587	 $85,847,107	 $      -
	 Unsecured	 61,453	 30,390	 4,410	 96,253	 786,128	 882,381	     -
	 SBA guaranteed	 50,019	 -	 2,217,547	 2,267,566	 8,092,261	 10,359,827	     - 
	 Other secured	 -	 -	 45,288	 45,288	 908,271	 953,559	 -

Residential real estate 
and home equity 
	 First mortgage	 2,426,144	 -	 3,297,416	 5,723,560	 252,503,660	 258,227,220	 -
	 Second mortgage	 40,924	 -	 -	 40,924	 2,081,169	 2,122,093	 -
	 Home equity lines  
         of credit	 552,064	 311,540	 1,146,218	 2,009,822	 149,477,524	 151,487,346	 -

Consumer loans - 
collateralized 
	 Automobile	 4,386,038	 1,064,844	 2,567,910	 8,018,792	 227,921,182	 235,939,974	 - 
	 Indirect automobile	2,146,180	 535,784	 1,510,527	 4,192,491	 125,654,913	 129,847,404	 - 
	 Other secured	 540,627	 194,828	 196,324	 931,779	 67,140,337	 68,072,116	 -

Consumer loans -  
unsecured 
	 Unsecured	 2,188,834	 592,775	 1,120,844	 3,902,453	 107,250,560	 111,153,013	 - 
	 Credit cards	 2,513,509	 794,218	 979,079	 4,286,806	 180,043,769	 184,330,575	 -

 Total	  $15,017,703 	 $3,524,379 	 $13,841,172	  $32,383,254 	 $1,206,839,361	 $1,239,222,615	 $    - 
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The following table presents nonaccrual loans by asset class as of June 30:

	 2013	 2012
Member business loans		   
	 Real estate secured	 $     41,132	 $   755,609 
	 Unsecured	 100,748	 4,410 
	 SBA guaranteed	 2,419,975	 2,217,547 
	 Other secured	 14,719	 45,288
		  Total member business loans	 $2,576,574	 $3,022,854
Residential real estate and home equity		   
	 First mortgage	 $1,113,222	 $ 3,297,416 
	 Home equity lines of credit	 425,087	 1,146,218
		  Total real estate loans	 $1,538,309	 $4,443,634
Consumer loans - collateralized		   
	 Automobile	 $2,682,450	 $2,567,910 
	 Indirect Automobile	 1,051,055	 1,510,527 
	 Other secured	 135,469	 196,324
		  Total collateralized consumer loans	 $3,868,974	 $  4,274,761
Consumer loans - unsecured		   
	 Unsecured	 $   621,734	 $  1,120,844 
	 Credit cards	 1,106,124	 979,079
		  Total unsecured consumer loans	 $1,727,858	 $  2,099,923
		  Total loans	 $9,711,715	 $13,841,172

	 Forgone interest on nonaccural loans	 $   410,347	 $     427,779

Troubled debt restructurings

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, impaired loans of $4,891,000 and $2,396,520, respectively, were 
classified as restructured loans. The restructurings were granted in response to borrower 
financial difficulty, and generally provide for a temporary modification of loan repayment 
terms.

The types of modifications offered can generally be described in the following categories:

Rate modification

A modification in which the interest rate is modified.

Term modification

A modification in which the maturity date, timing of payments, or frequency of payments is 
changed.

Payment modification

A modification in which the payment amount is changed.
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Combination modification

Any other type of modification, including the use of multiple types of modifications.

The following table presents loans identified as restructured during the year ended June 30:

2013

		  Pre-	 Post- 
		  Modification	 Modification 
	  Number of	 Outstanding	 Outstanding 
	 Contracts	 Balance	 Balance

Member business loans 
	 Real estate secured	 1	 $   73,055	 $  73,055 
	 SBA guaranteed	 8	 221,467	 221,467
Total member business loans	 9	 294,522	 294,522
Consumer loans - collateralized 
	 Automobile	 55	 625,712	 612,366 
	 Indirect automobile	 30	 309,635	 307,057
Total collateralized  
consumer loans	 85	 935,347	 919,423
Total loans		  94	 $1,229,869	 $1,213,945

2012

		  Pre-	 Post- 
		  Modification	 Modification 
	  Number of	 Outstanding	 Outstanding 
	 Contracts	 Balance	 Balance

Member business loans 
	 Real estate secured	 4	 $ 1,137,484	 $ 1,137,484 
	 SBA guaranteed	 8	 1,160,306	 1,160,306
Total member business loans	 12	 2,297,790	 2,297,790
Residential real estate and home equity 
	 First mortgage	 1	 96,131	 98,730
Total real estate loans	 1	 96,131	 98,730
Total loans		  13	 $ 2,393,921	 $2,396,520
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The Credit Union defines default as loans that went 90 days or more past due after the 
modification, loans that were charged off during the year, or loans that encounter a sub-
sequent modification. The following table presents subsequent defaults on troubled debt 
restructurings during the year ended June 30, 2013:

		   Number of	 Total 
		  Contracts	 Loans

Member business loans 
	 Real estate secured		  1	 $  73,055 
	 SBA guaranteed		  1	 3,385
Total member business loans		  2	 76,440
Consumer loans - collateralized 
	 Automobile		  44	 476,894 
	 Indirect automobile		  24	 219,067
Total collateralized consumer loans		  68	 695,961
Total loans			   70	 $772,401

There were no subsequent defaults on troubled debt restructuring during the year ended 
June 30, 2012.

Note 4. Other Real Estate Owned

The following table summarizes the change in the balance of other real estate owned for  
the years ended June 30:
 
	 2013	 2012
Balance, beginning of the year	 $2,666,826	 $6,067,249 
	 Additions	 2,217,486	 1,411,423 
	 Proceeds from sales	 (1,553,412)	 (4,690,297) 
	 Gain on sales	 (162,613)	 261,438 
	 Writedowns	 (292,905)	 (382,987)
Balance, end of the year	 $2,875,382	 $2,666,826

Note 5. Loan Servicing

Mortgage loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of financial condition. The unpaid principal balances of these loans at  
June 30 are summarized as follows:
	 2013	 2012
Mortgage loan portfolio serviced for Fannie Mae	 $660,095,928	 $581,331,372 
Mortgage loan portfolio serviced for Freddie Mac	 2,856,740	 4,409,256 
Mortgage loan portfolio serviced for city of Huntsville	 539,045	 588,298
					     $663,491,713	 $586,328,926

Mortgage servicing rights in the amount of $3,292,107 and $3,132,978 at June 30, 2013  
and 2012, respectively, are classified as other assets. 
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Custodial escrow balances maintained in connection with the foregoing loan servicing, and 
included in deposits, were $4,900,995 and $3,896,335 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The activity in capitalized mortgage servicing rights for the years ended June 30 are sum-
marized as follows:
	 2013	 2012
Mortgage servicing rights 
	 Balance, beginning of year	 $3,304,690	 $2,701,122 
		  Additions	 1,635,670	 1,797,507 
		  Amortizations	 (1,638,448)	 (1,193,939)
	 Balance, end of the year	 $3,301,912	 $3,304,690
Reserve for impairment of mortgage servicing rights 
	 Balance, beginning of year	 171,712	 -
		  Additions (reductions)	 (161,907)	 171,712
	 Balance, end of the year	 9,805	 171,712
		  Net book value	 $3,292,107	 $3,132,978

The key market assumptions used in determining the fair value of mortgage servicing rights 
for first mortgages at June 30 were as follows:

	 2013	 2012
Prepayment speed per year	 8 CPR	 16 CPR	
Weighted-average discount rate	 10.41%	 8.52%

Note 6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are summarized as follows June 30:
	 2013	 2012
Land			   $ 16,336,930	 $ 16,333,930 
Land improvements	 7,527,954	 7,499,361 
Building and building improvement	 84,584,135	 83,422,626 
Leasehold improvements	 4,250,654	 2,201,917 
Furniture improvements	 40,333,400	 43,257,256
					     153,033,073	 152,715,090 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization	 (63,365,170)	 (61,584,232)
					     $ 89,667,903	 $  91,130,858
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The Credit Union leases ten offices and space for automated teller machines. The operating 
leases contain renewal options and provisions requiring the Credit Union to pay property 
taxes and operating expenses over base period amounts. All rental payments are dependent 
only upon the lapse of time. Minimum rental payments under operating leases with initial 
or remaining terms of one year or more at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Years ending June 30:
	 2014				    $163,290 
	 2015				    98,930 
	 2016				    90,625 
	 2017				    60,200 
	 2018				    25,900 
	 Subsequent years				    355,650

					     $794,595

Rental expense for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, for all facilities leased under 
operating leases, totaled $128,042 and $82,333, respectively.

Note 7. Members’ Shares

Members’ shares are summarized as follows June 30:
	 2013	 2012
Regular shares	 $1,095,788,800	 $997,799,734 
Share draft accounts	 477,995,225	 447,774,307 
Money market accounts	 913,408,764	 884,237,594 
Individual retirement accounts	 44,395,709	 42,686,493 
Other savings	 13,576,321	 11,790,905 
Certificates		 532,067,177	 563,201,549
Balance, end of the year	 $3,077,231,996	 $2,947,490,582

Certificates by contractual maturity as of June 30, 2013, are summarized as follows:
0-1 year maturity				    245,749,807 

1-2 years maturity				    89,739,264 

2-3 years maturity				    73,213,869 

3-4 years maturity				    74,356,927 

4-5 years maturity				    49,007,310 

						      $ 532,067,177

Regular shares, share draft accounts, money market accounts and individual retirement 
account shares and other savings have no contractual maturity. Certificates have maturities 
of five years or less. The NCUSIF insures members’ shares and certain individual retire-
ment and Keogh accounts. Effective October 3, 2008, and continuing through December 
31, 2013, new legislation provides for an increase in the minimum NCUSIF coverage from 
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$100,000 to $250,000 on member share accounts. This includes all account types, such 
as regular share, share draft, money market and certificates of deposit. Individual retire-
ment account and Keogh account coverage remains at up to $250,000 separate from other 
types of accounts owned. As of July 21, 2010, Congress permanently applied the minimum 
NCUSIF coverage to $250,000 on member share accounts.

The aggregate amount of certificates in denominations of $250,000 or more at June 30, 
2013 and 2012, is $39,161,196 and $37,315,396 respectively. The aggregate amount of cer-
tificates in denominations of $100,000 or more at June 30, 2013 and 2012, is $187,629,982 
and $193,614,912, respectively.

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, overdraft demand shares reclassified to loans totaled $2,400,654 
and $1,460,043, respectively.

Note 8. Borrowed Funds

The Credit Union utilizes a demand loan agreement with the FHLB of Atlanta. The advanc-
es are collateralized by FHLB of Atlanta stock and pledged mortgage loan collateral, which 
includes residential first mortgages, home equity lines of credit, second mortgages and 
commercial mortgage loan collateral, under an Advances and Security Agreement between 
the FHLB and the Credit Union. The amount of loans pledged as collateral at June 30, 2013, 
is $244,651,606. Based on the qualifying collateral, the agreement provides for a maximum 
borrowing amount of approximately $353,590,000. As of June 30, 2013, the borrowings out-
standing represented $47,889,083, with accrued interest payable of $85,336. The fixed-rate 
advances have interest rates ranging from 1.046% to 3.910%. 

As of June 30, 2013, the outstanding balances by maturity dates are as follows:

0-1 years maturity				    $11,826,308 
1-2 years maturity				    839,943 
2-3 years maturity				    853,803 
3-4 years maturity				    13,149,586 
4-5 years maturity				    16,997,291 
>5 years maturity				    4,222,152

					     $47,889,083

The Credit Union has available a line of credit with the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta 
which is secured by pledged investments from the Credit Union’s investment portfolio. The 
terms of the agreement provide for primary credit up to $20,000,000, with interest payable 
at 50 basis points above the Federal Open Market Committee’s federal funds rate. There 
were no borrowings under this agreement as of June 30, 2013 or 2012.

Note 9. Off-Balance Sheet Activities

The Credit Union is party to conditional commitments to lend funds in the normal course 
of business to meet the financing needs of its members. These commitments represent 
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financial instruments to extend credit that include lines of credit, credit cards and home 
equity lines that involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess 
of amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

The Credit Union’s exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of these 
commitments. The Credit Union follows the same credit policies in making commitments 
as it does for those loans recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

Outstanding loan commitments at June 30, 2013 and 2012, total approximately 
$17,463,110 and $18,783,666, respectively. Letters of credit outstanding as of June 30, 2013 
and 2012, total $57,638 and $107,638, respectively. 

ACH origination limits for business customers outstanding as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
total approximately $630,000 and $365,000, respectively.

Unfunded loan commitments under lines of credit are summarized as follows at June 30:

	 2013	 2012
Credit card		 $367,039,254	 $375,732,237 
Home equity line of credit	 135,576,664	 128,928,511 
Overdraft line of credit	 40,656,296	 40,405,951 
Member business	 9,223,692	 2,395,212 
Other consumer	 3,786,113	 3,138,689
					     $556,282,019	 $550,600,600

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a member as long as there is no 
violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed 
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Because 
many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total com-
mitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Credit Union 
evaluates each member’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral 
obtained to secure borrowing on the lines of credit is based on management’s credit evalua-
tion of the member.

Unfunded commitments under member business lines of credit, revolving credit lines and 
overdraft protection agreements are commitments for possible future extensions of credit 
to existing customers. These lines of credit are uncollateralized and usually do not contain a 
specified maturity date and ultimately may not be drawn upon to the total extent to which 
the Credit Union is committed.

The Credit Union is regularly a party to various legal actions normally associated with col-
lections of loans and other business activities of financial institutions, the aggregate effect 
of which, in management’s opinion, would not have a material adverse effect on the finan-
cial condition or results of operations of the Credit Union.
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Note 10. Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, the Credit Union sells loans without recourse that may 
have to be subsequently repurchased due to defects that occurred during the origination 
of the loan. The defects are categorized as documentation errors, underwriting errors, 
early payment defaults, and fraud. When a loan sold to an investor without recourse fails 
to perform, the investor will typically review the loan file to determine whether defects in 
the origination process occurred. If a defect is identified, the Credit Union may be required 
to either repurchase the loan or indemnify the investor for losses sustained. If there are no 
defects, the Credit Union has no commitment to repurchase the loan. As of June 30, 2013 
and 2012, these guarantees totaled $662,952,668 and $585,740,628, respectively. These 
substantially represent the unpaid principal balance of the Credit Union’s loans serviced for 
others’ portfolios. The Credit Union has recorded no reserve to cover loss exposure related 
to these guarantees.

Note 11. Employee Benefits

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Credit Union sponsors a defined benefit pension plan (Plan) for the benefit of its  
employees. The Plan calls for benefits to be paid to eligible employees at retirement based 
primarily upon years of service with the Credit Union and compensation levels at retire-
ment. Contributions to the plan reflect benefits attributed to employees’ services to date,  
as well as services expected to be earned in the future. The Plan’s status on June 30 is:

	 2013	 2012
Projected benefit obligation	 $(41,881,820)	 $(43,223,785) 
Fair value of plan assets	 26,073,793	 21,414,170
	 Funded status	 $(15,808,027)	 $(21,809,615) 

Accumulated benefit obligation	 $30,049,484 	 $29,604,466

Net pension cost	 $3,837,553	 $2,052,253  
Employer contribution	 1,800,000	 1,800,000 
Benefit payments	 470,417	 413,149

The components of pension expense are as follows June 30:
	 2013	 2012
Service cost	 $ 2,266,339	 $ 1,471,323 
Interest cost	 1,804,002	 1,664,482 
Expected return on Plan assets	 (1,763,425)	 (1,681,474) 
Amortization of transition obligation	 230,175	 230,175 
Amortization of loss	 1,300,462	 367,747

	 Net periodic pension cost (NPPC)	 $3,837,553	 $2,052,253
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The change in fair value of plan assets is as follows June 30:
	 2013	 2012
Fair value of Plan assets at beginning of year	 $21,414,170	 $20,318,183 
Actual return on Plan assets	 3,330,040	 (290,864) 
Employer contributions	 1,800,000	 1,800,000 
Benefits paid	 (470,417)	 (413,149)
	 Fair value of Plan assets at end of year	 $26,073,793	 $21,414,170

The change in projected benefit obligation is as follows June 30:
	 2013	 2012
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year	 $43,223,785	 $28,799,108 
Service cost	 2,266,339	 1,471,323 
Interest cost	 1,804,002	 1,664,482 
Benefits paid	 (470,417)	 (413,149) 
Actuarial (loss) gain	 (4,941,889)	 11,702,021
Projected benefit obligation at end of year	 $41,881,820	 $43,223,785 

Amounts recognized in the statements of financial condition consist of:
	 2013	 2012
Noncurrent liabilities	 $15,808,027	 $21,809,615
Total recognized	 $15,808,027	 $21,809,615

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consist of:

	 2013	 2012
Unrealized losses	 $13,055,294	 $20,864,260  
Transition obligation	 115,080	 345,255
Funded status		 13,170,374	 $21,209,515

The following are the amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income expected to  
be recognized as components of net periodic pension cost over the next fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2014:
Amortization of loss	 $700,957
Transition assets/obligation	 115,080

Expected long-term return on Plan assets is determined by applying historical average  
investment returns from published indexes relating to the current allocation of assets in  
the portfolio.

The Plan seeks to beat inflation, meet actuarial assumptions, meet or exceed benchmark 
returns, and fund Plan operating needs. The goal is to control risk through portfolio 
diversification and to reflect, among other possible factors, the previously stated objectives 
in conjunction with current and anticipated funding levels and economic and industry 
trends. Plan assets are primarily invested in funds with a high degree of liquidity and/or 
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marketability. Quantitative and qualitative determinants will establish the appropriate  
asset allocation on a periodic, but not less than annual basis.
	 2013	 2012
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligation	 	  
	 Discount rate	 4.90%	 4.20% 
	 Rate of compensation increase	 5.00%	 5.00%

Assumptions used to determine net pension cost 
	 Discount rate	 4.90%	 4.20% 
	 Expected long-term return on Plan assets	 8.00%	 8.00% 
	 Rate of compensation increase	 5.00%	 5.00%

The Credit Union expects to contribute approximately $1,800,000 to the Plan in fiscal year 
2014.

The Credit Union’s pension plan weighted average asset allocations by asset category are as 
follows:
	 2013	 2012
Equity securities	 84.6%	 82.6%	 
Fixed income	 13.9%	 15.6% 
Money market funds and cash	 1.5%	 1.8%

The following pension benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropri-
ate, are expected to be paid as follows:
Years ending June 30:
2014				    $542,712 
2015				    764,208 
2016				    847,165 
2017				    957,333 
2018				    1,095,250 
2019-2023			  8,156,015

					     $12,362,683
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The following table discloses the fair value of Pension Plan assets by level:

		  Quoted Prices 
		  in Active	 Significant	 Significant 
		  Markets for	 Observable	 Unobservable 
		  Identical Assets	 Inputs	 Inputs 
	 Total	 (Level 1)	 (Level 2)	 (Level 3)

June 30, 2013: 
Money market fund		  $     442,745	 $     442,745	 $       -	 $       -
Mutual funds 
	 Domestic equity 
		  Value funds		  6,702,309	 6,702,309	 -	 - 
		  Growth funds 		  4,118,100	 4,118,100	 -	 - 
		  Blended funds		  6,669,907	 6,669,907	 -	 - 
	 International equity		  3,794,149	 3,794,149	 -	 - 
	 Specialty funds		  730,404	 730,404	 -	 - 
	 Fixed income		  3,616,179	 3,616,179	 -	 -

				    $26,073,793	 $26,073,793	 $       -		  $       -
June 30, 2012: 
Money market fund		  $    377,599		 $    377,599	 $       -		  $       - 
Mutual funds
	 Domestic equity 
		  Value funds		  5,428,755		 5,428,755	 -		  - 
		  Growth funds 		  3,081,151		 3,081,151	 -		  - 
		  Blended funds		  5,427,523		 5,427,523	 -		  - 
	 International equity		  3,090,028		 3,090,028	 -		  - 
	 Specialty funds		  666,462		 666,462	 -		  - 
	 Fixed income		  3,342,652		 3,342,652	 -		  -

				    $21,414,170	 $21,414,170	 $       -		  $       -

Postretirement Benefit Plan

The Credit Union provides certain health care benefits for all retired employees who meet 
eligibility requirements. The Credit Union’s share of the benefits that will be paid after re-
quirement is being accrued by charges to expense over each employee’s service period to the 
dates they are fully eligible for benefits.

The funded status of the Plan is as follows:
	 2013	 2012
Benefit obligation at June 30	 $9,874,542	 $10,134,782
Fair value of Plan assets	 -	 -
	 Funded status	 $9,874,542	 $10,134,782

Benefits cost	 $  963,496	 $  762,548 
Employer contribution	 139,329	 94,538 
Benefits payments	 139,329 	 94,538

The Credit Union expects to contribute $227,757 to the Plan in fiscal year 2014.
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Amounts recognized in the statement of financial condition consist of:
	 2013	 2012
Noncurrent liabilities	 $9,874,542	 $10,134,782
Total recognized	 $9,874,542	 $10,134,782

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss consist of the following:
	 2013	 2012
Actuarial losses	 $(887,958)	 $(1,972,365)

The following are assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the Plan at 
June 30:
	 2013	 2012
Weighted-average assumptions as of June 30		   
	 Discount rate	 4.90%	 4.20% 
	 Healthcare cost trend 
		  Current	 7.00%	 7.00% 
		  Ultimate	 5.00%	 5.00%

The following benefits are expected to be paid as follows:

Years ending June 30:
2014				    $227,757 
2015				    272,200  
2016				    254,810  
2017				    295,032  
2018				    316,563  
2019-2023			  2,936,924 

					     $4,303,286

The Credit Union has a 401(k) defined contribution plan (Plan) that allows employees to 
defer a portion of their salary into the 401(k) plan. The Credit Union matches a portion of 
employees’ wage reductions. The Credit Union contributed $1,463,421 and $1,365,931 to 
the Plan for the years ending June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Credit Union has a deferred compensation plan (Plan) created in accordance with Inter-
nal Revenue Code Section 457(b). The Plan permits the eligible employees to defer a portion 
of their salary until future years. The recorded obligation of approximately $446,350 and 
$342,069 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, was included in other liabilities.

The Credit Union also has a deferred compensation plan (Plan) created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457(f). The Plan allows the Credit Union to contribute a 
specific amount of pre-tax income in a variable annuity for eligible employees with ben-
efits to be paid on a specific date or when they retire. The recorded asset of $6,852,367 and 
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$5,999,760 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, was included in other assets. The 
recorded obligation of $1,493,619 and $1,154,778 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, 
was recorded in other liabilities.

Note 12. Members’ Equity

The Credit Union is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the 
NCUA. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory—and 
possibly additional discretionary—actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a 
direct material effect on the Credit Union’s consolidated financial statements. Under capital 
adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Credit 
Union must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Credit 
Union’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Credit Union’s capital 
amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about 
components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the 
Credit Union to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of 
net worth to total assets. Further, credit unions over $10,000,000 in assets are also required 
to calculate a Risk-Based Net Worth (RBNW) requirement that establishes whether or not 
the Credit Union will be considered – complex under the regulatory framework. The Credit 
Union’s RBNW requirements as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, were 7.21% and 6.93%, respec-
tively. The minimum requirement to be considered – complex under the regulatory frame-
work is 6.00%. Management believes, as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, that the Credit Union 
meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

Key aspects of the Credit Union’s minimum capital amounts and ratios are summarized as 
follows:

	 ----------- 2013 -----------	 ----------- 2012 -----------		
	 Amount	 Ratio	 Amount	 Ratio

Amount needed to be classified as 
	 well capitalized for RBNW	 $255,275,949	 7.21%	 $234,032,236	 6.93% 
Amount needed to be classified 
	 as well capitalized		  247,840,727	 7.00%	 236,396,198	 7.00% 
Actual net worth		  378,101,246	 10.68%	 347,448,371	 10.29%

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the NCUA categorized the Credit Union as – well capitalized 
under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as – well 
capitalized, the Credit Union must maintain a minimum net worth ratio of 7% of assets. 
There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have 
changed the institution’s category. In performing its calculation of total assets, the Credit 
Union used the quarter end balance option, as permitted by regulation.
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Note 13. Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, the Credit Union extends credit to directors, Supervisory 
Committee members, and executive officers. The aggregate loans to related parties at June 
30, 2013 and 2012, are approximately $503,364 and $503,684, respectively. Deposits from 
related parties at June 30, 2013 and 2012, amounted to approximately $2,656,468 and 
$1,320,831, respectively.

Note 14. Fair Value Measurements

The Codification defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and 
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. Fair value is a market-based measure-
ment, not an entity-specific measurement, and the hierarchy gives the highest priority to 
quoted prices in active markets. 

Fair value measurements are disclosed by level within the fair value hierarchy. Fair value is 
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants. Valuation techniques are to be consistent with 
the market approach, the income approach, and/or the cost approach. Inputs to valuation 
techniques refer to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset 
or liability. Inputs may be observable, meaning those that reflect the assumptions market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data ob-
tained from independent sources, or unobservable, meaning those that reflect the reporting 
entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing 
the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. 
In that regard, the fair value hierarchy establishes valuation inputs that give the highest 
priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest 
priority to unobservable inputs. 

The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 – Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as 
the New York Stock Exchange (Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing 
sources for market transactions involving identical assets or liabilities.)

Level 2 – Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker mar-
kets (Valuations are obtained from observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as 
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; 
or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for 
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.)

Level 3 – Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation meth-
odologies, including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar 
techniques, and not based on market exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions 
(Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections for which require 
significant management judgment or estimation in determining the fair value assigned 
to such assets or liabilities.)
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A summary of the Credit Union’s financial instruments and other accounts subject to fair 
value, including methodologies and resulting values follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair value.

Investments

Where quoted prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 
of the valuation hierarchy. Level 1 securities would include highly liquid government bonds 
and exchange traded equities. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are 
estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics or 
discounted cash flows. Level 2 securities would include U.S. agency debentures and agency 
issued mortgage backed securities. In certain cases where there is limited activity or less 
transparency around inputs to the valuation, securities are classified within Level 3 of the 
valuation hierarchy.

U.S. agency and agency issued mortgage-backed securities are generally based upon a matrix 
pricing model from an investment reporting and valuation service. Matrix pricing is a math-
ematical technique used principally to value debt securities without relying exclusively on 
quoted prices for the specific securities, but rather by relying on the securities’ relationship 
to other benchmark quoted securities. The Level 3 measurements are based primarily on un-
observable inputs. In developing Level 3 measurements, management incorporates whatever 
market data might be available and uses discounted cash flow models where appropriate.  
These calculations include projections of future cash flows, including appropriate default 
and loss assumptions, and market-based discount rates. The Credit Union maintains a 
Board approved investment policy that includes valuation considerations of the investment 
portfolio. At least annually, management updates the policy for any necessary changes due 
to operational or regulatory changes and presents the policy to the Board of Directors for 
approval. Management reviews the model and assumptions used in determining the fair 
value of Level 3 investments. 

The auction rate securities, floating-rate long-term bonds, are valued using discounted cash 
flow models where appropriate.  The unobservable inputs considered in the projections 
of future cash flow include, but are not limited to: time remaining until maturity and the 
provisions for repayment of principal, interest rate and the timing of interest payments, 
credit-worthiness of the issuer and guarantor(s), trading characteristics of the securities, and 
evidence from secondary market transactions for identical or similar securities.

Other Investments

The carrying value approximates fair value based on the redemption provisions of the un-
derlying investments.

Loans Held for Sale

The carrying amount of loans held for sale approximates fair value.
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Loans, Net

For variable rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit risk, 
fair values are based on carrying values. Fair values for certain mortgage loans (for example, 
one-to-four family residential), credit card loans and other consumer loans are estimated 
using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered 
similar loans to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities of these loans. Fair 
values for business real estate and business loans are estimated using discounted cash flow 
analyses, using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrow-
ers of similar credit quality. Fair values for impaired loans are estimated using discounted 
cash flow analyses or underlying collateral values, where applicable.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

Mortgage servicing rights (MSRs) do not trade in an active, open market with readily 
observable prices. While sales of MSRs do occur, the precise terms and conditions typically 
are not readily available. Accordingly, the Credit Union estimates the fair value of MSRs 
and certain other retained interests in securitizations using discounted cash flow models 
incorporating numerous assumptions from the perspective of market participants includ-
ing servicing income, servicing costs, market discount rates, prepayment speeds and default 
rates.

Accrued Interest

Accrued interest receivable represents interest on loans and investments. The carrying 
amount of accrued interest receivable approximates fair value.

Members’ Shares

The fair values disclosed for regular share, share draft and money market accounts are, 
by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (that is, their 
carrying amounts). The carrying amounts of regular share, share draft and money market 
accounts approximate their fair values at the reporting date. Fair values for share certificates 
are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently 
being offered on share certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities 
on the Credit Union’s current share certificates.

Borrowed Funds

The fair values of the Credit Union’s borrowed funds are estimated using discounted cash 
flow analyses based on the Credit Union’s incremental borrowing rates for similar types of 
borrowing arrangements.

Off-Balance Sheet Credit-Related Instruments

Fair values for off-balance sheet, credit-related financial instruments are based on fees cur-
rently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms 
of the agreements and the counterparties’ credit standing. The fair value for such financial 
instruments is nominal.
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Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The table below presents the balances of assets and liabilities measured and presented in the 
statement of financial condition at fair value on a recurring basis:

		  Quoted Prices	 Significant 
		  in Active	 Other	 Significant 
		  Markets for	 Observable	 Unobservable 
		  Identical Assets	 Inputs	 Inputs 
	 Total	 (Level 1)	 (Level 2)	 (Level 3)

June 30, 2013: 
Available for sale: 
	 Federal agency  
		  securities		  $638,200,609	 $       -	 $638,200,609	 $       -
	 Mortgage-backed  
		  securities		  257,016,887	 -	 257,016,887	 -
	 Municipal bonds  
		  (auction rate securities)	 25,904,648	 -	 -	 25,904,648
	 Mutual funds		  140	 140	 -	 -

		  $921,122,284	 $140	 $895,217,496	 $25,904,648
June 30, 2012: 
Available for sale: 
	 Federal agency securities	 $658,530,034 	 $       -	 $658,530,034	 $       -
	 Mortgage-backed securities	 234,924,823	 -	 234,924,823	 -
	 Municipal bonds  
		  (auction rate securities)	 26,131,422	 -	 -	 26,131,422
	 Mutual funds		  140	 140	 -	 -

		  $919,586,419	 $140	 $893,454,857	 $26,131,422

The changes in Level 3 assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized  
as follows:
					     Auction Rate 
				     	 Securities
Balance, June 30, 2011		  $27,579,011
	 Total net gains (losses) included in 
		  Net income		  -
		  Other comprehensive income		  402,688 
	 Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements 
		  Sales		  (1,850,277) 

Balance, June 30, 2012		  26,131,422
	 Total net gains (losses) included in: 
		  Net income		  -
		  Other comprehensive income		  297,949 
	 Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements 
		  Settlements		  (524,723) 

Balance, June 30, 2013				    $25,904,648
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Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

Certain assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis; that is, the 
instruments are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value 
adjustments in certain circumstances (for example, when there is evidence of impairment). 
The following table presents the assets and liabilities carried on the statement of financial 
condition by caption and by level within the valuation hierarchy (as described above) for 
which a nonrecurring change in fair value has been recorded.

		  Quoted Prices	 Significant 
		  in Active	 Other	 Significant	 Year Ended 
		  Markets for	 Observable	 Unobservable	 Total Expense 
		  Identical Assets	 Inputs	 Inputs	 (Income) 
	 Total	 (Level 1)	 (Level 2)	 (Level 3	 Recognized)
June 30, 2013 
	 Impaired loans		  $8,245,090	 $    -	 $    -	 $8,245,090	 $5,418,692 
	 Mortgage servicing rights		  3,292,107	 $    -	 $    -	 3,292,107	 (161,907) 
	 Other real estate owned		  2,875,382	 $    -	 $    -	 2,875,382	 292,905

June 30, 2012 
	 Impaired loans		  $5,940,023	 $    -	 $    -	 $5,940,023	 $2,335,753 
	 Mortgage servicing rights		  3,132,978	 $    -	 $    -	 3,132,978	 171,712 
	 Other real estate owned		  2,666,826	 $    -	 $    -	 2,666,826	 382,988

Impaired Loans

The fair value of impaired loans is estimated using one of several methods, including collat-
eral value, market value of similar debt, enterprise value, liquidation value and discounted 
cash flows. Those impaired loans not requiring an allowance represent loans for which the 
fair value of the expected repayments or collateral exceed the recorded investments in such 
loans. At June 30, 2013, substantially all of the total impaired loans were evaluated based on 
the fair value of the collateral. In accordance with ASC Topic 820, impaired loans where an 
allowance is established based on the fair value of collateral require classification in the fair 
value hierarchy. Collateral values are estimated using Level 3 inputs based on customized 
discounting criteria. For a majority of impaired real estate loans, the Credit Union obtains 
a current external appraisal. Other valuation techniques are used as well, including internal 
valuations, comparable property analysis and contractual sales information.
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Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

The range and weighted average of the significant unobservable inputs used to fair value 
Level 3 nonrecurring assets during the year ending June 30, 2013, along with the valuation 
techniques used, are shown in the following table:

	 Fair Value at 
	 June 30, 			   Range 
	 2013	 Valuation Technique	 Unobservable Input	 (Weighted-Average)1

Other real estate owned 	 $2,875,382	 Lower of cost/market	 Adjustment to valuation	 0% (0%) 
Impaired loans 	 8,245,090	 Various	 Adjustment to valuation	 3.35% - 9.75% 
Mortgage servicing rights	 3,292,107	 Discounted cash flow	 Constant prepayment rate	 6%-18% (8 CPR) 
			   Discount rate	 9.4%-14.59% (10.41%)

1 Discount to appraisal value. Amounts are estimated and carrying amount is generally lower than estimated fair value.

The estimated fair value of the Credit Union’s financial instruments is summarized as 
 follows at June 30:

	 2013	 2012 

	 Carrying	 Fair	 Carrying	 Fair 
	 Amount	 Value	 Amount	 Value

Financial assets: 
	 Cash and  
		  cash equivalents		  $122,552,172	 $122,552,172	 $138,577,477	 $138,577,477 
	 Investments available  
		  for sale		  921,122,284	 921,122,284	 919,586,419	 919,586,419 
	 Investments held  
		  to maturity		  1,014,093,344	 1,036,293,414	 916,802,262	 933,126,973 
	 Other investments		  6,269,348	 6,269,348	 11,987,048	 11,987,048 
	 Loans held for sale		  22,211,887	 22,211,887	 15,790,485	 15,790,485 
	 Loans to members, net		 1,273,495,324	 1,266,467,279	 1,221,342,516	 1,228,065,844  
	 Accrued interest  
		  receivable		  12,312,516	 12,312,516	 12,911,257	 12,911,257

Financial liabilities: 
	 Members’ shares		  3,077,231,996	 3,074,606,232	 2,947,490,582	 2,956,404,099 
	 Borrowed funds		  47,974,419	 48,262,595	 25,568,135	 25,666,866
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Leadership
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Condolences 
This year Redstone Federal Credit Union mourns the loss of two of our longtime  
volunteers; Director Emeritus, Charles L. Ray, Jr. and Director, Pamela H. Philyaw.

Mr. Ray began as a volunteer in 1977. He served as the Chair of the Board of  
Directors from 1983 to 2011.

Ms. Philyaw was a volunteer with Redstone for 28 years – 18 of which were served 
as a member of the Board of Directors.

Mr. Ray and Ms. Philyaw were champions of the Credit Union movement. Their 
commitment to our cooperative is truly admired, and they are greatly missed.






